## **EAGLE WRESTLING CLUB BYLAWS**

# **Constitution and Bylaws**

Pemberville, Ohio

# **Article I - Name and Purpose**

**Section 1.01.** The name of this organization shall be known as "EAGLE WRESTLING CLUB."

Section 1.02. This club has been formed to promote, assist, and support Eagles Wrestling Club wrestlers, Eastwood Area wrestlers, Eastwood area coaches, and programs, including youth middle school, high school, and college. The Club may provide adequate practice space and equipment, purchase equipment and gear, and supplement wrestler's expenses at meets, tournaments, and camps. Generally financially assist Eastwood wrestlers, Eagle Wrestling Club sponsored wrestlers and the programs that support them.

### Article II - Memberships

- **Section 2.01.** Any individual that supports the purpose of this club, remits \$10.00 annual membership dues and is 18+ years of age and not currently a high school student shall be considered for a single membership and earn full voting rights for the election officers and monthly business.
- **Section 2.02.** Membership in the club allows sponsorship of a participating high school, middle school, and or youth wrestler to be eligible for off-season assistance. This sponsor may be any member that is not already sponsoring another wrestler, unless all wrestlers are from the same family. During the pertinent seasons, the club may assist participating wrestlers of an Eastwood wrestling program including college, high school, middle school or youth teams.
- **Section 2.03.** A qualified eligible wrestler shall have a sponsoring member at Coaches & Board discretion to be eligible for off-season assistance that year.

### <u>Article III – Meetings</u>

- **Section 3.01.** The annual meeting of membership shall be held in July. That date shall also mandate the required election of officers. If change in date is necessary, 3 day notice will be given to all members.
- **Section 3.02.** The Monthly meeting of officers shall be the second Thursday of each month. If change in the date is necessary, 3 day notice will be given to all members.
- **Section 3.03.** Public notice shall be made for meetings.
- **Section 3.04.** Any Member of the board of Officers may call a specially called meeting. Members shall be provided with 3 day notice for a specially called meeting.

**Section 3.05.** At a meeting of the board of Officers a quorum of 6/9th must be present and voting.

Section 3.06. The following agenda shall be used at meetings:

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Old Business
- 3. Reports of Officers
- 4. New Business
- 5. Fundraising
- 6. Additions to the Agenda
- 7. Upcoming Events
- 8. Adjournment

#### **Article IV - Board Of Officers**

**Section 4.01.** There shall be 9 members on the board of Officers and shall include the positions of; President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, Varsity Coach or designee, High School Representative, Middle School Representative, Youth Club Representative, and Trustee.

**Section 4.02.** The elected officers shall perform duties as described.

- President- Preside at all Meetings, conduct meetings according to parliamentary procedures, appoint replacements to vacated elected positions with approval of the board to fulfill the elected terms, appoint committees as needed with approval of the board, vote on board issues only in the case of a tie.
- Vice President- Perform the duties of the president in the positions absence.
- Treasurer- Be responsible for the club's financial matters, attend monthly meetings to give financial reports.
- Secretary- Be responsible for the club's records and meeting minutes, be responsible for public announcements.
- Varsity Coach- Present views to forward the club purpose.
- HS Rep- Present concerns of the high school membership body.
- MS Rep- Present concerns of the middle school membership body.
- Youth Rep- Present concerns of the youth club membership body.
- Trustee- Present concerns of the entire Eagle Wrestling Club.

**Section 4.03.** A member shall be eligible for election if they have been a member in good standing for two consecutive years. This requirement will be waived for the first and second years of election.

**Section 4.04.** An elected officer shall hold office for two consecutive years. Term shall be July- June with a break the month of June.

**Section 4.05.** Election of officers shall be split terms. In the first year of existence the office of Vice President, Secretary, HS Rep, and Youth Rep shall be one year terms. The elections shall alternate the remaining positions every other election.

**Section 4.06.** At the May monthly meeting, office nominations shall be taken by voice of the floor or google form. The nominated members must accept or decline the nomination following the proposed nominations for all involved officers. Following all accepted nominations for office, a vote will be taken for each office. The vote shall take place at the annual July meeting or any open mats held the 2nd week of July. Absentee ballot will be available upon request. Elected Officers shall be announced at the July Summer Gathering.

**Section 4.07.** During bylaw change considerations, club members may convey to the voting body by proxy of another member(s).

**Section 4.08.** Replacement of Directors. Whenever a vacancy exists on the Board, whether by death, resignation, or otherwise, the vacancy will be filled by appointment of a new director by the President. If that power is not exercised within 30 days after the president receives notice of the vacancy, the vacancy shall be filled by a majority of the remaining directors at a regular or special meeting of the Board. The person who fills the vacancy shall hold office for the remainder of the term of his or her predecessor in office.

**Section 4.09** Removal of Director. Any director may be removed, with or without cause, by the vote of two-thirds of the Board at a special meeting called for that purpose. At such a meeting, the vacancy shall be filled as stated in Section 6.06.

#### **Article V – Amendments**

**Section 5.01.** Amendments to those bylaws shall occur with  $\frac{2}{3}$  approval of membership annual meetings, specially called meetings or regular monthly meetings. For specially called meetings the membership shall be given 3 day notice.

**Section 5.02.** Proposed bylaw amendments shall be read at two consecutive meetings.

#### **Article VI – Dissolvement**

**Section 6.01.** This club may dissolve in accordance with all applicable laws. Any remaining assets shall be distributed to these organizations in the following order

Eastwood District Wrestling
Eastwood Athletics Board